

PUBLIC FORUM DEBATE

SEPTEMBER/OCTOBER 2024 ADVANCED EVIDENCE BRIEF





TABLE OF CONTENTS

Fopic Evolution	3
Further Reading and Classroom Resources	4
General and FYI	
Pro - General	6
Pro - Drug Trafficking	6
Pro - Weapons Smuggling	7
Con - General	9
Con - Migrant Deaths/Danger	9
Con - Deterrence Ineffective	. 10
Con - Surveillance Creep	. 10
Con - CBP Issues	.11
Pro Evidence	.13
DHS has been expanding the types of surveillance technology they use at the border	. 13
Weapons trafficked from the US into Mexico worsen conditions on both sides of the border and increase overdose deaths	
One Wisconsin town has provided thousands of dollars' worth of weapons to Mexico	. 15
Cartels employ Americans to help them get guns across the border and into Mexico	. 16
Migrant households are more likely to use welfare programs	. 17
Fentanyl scanners sit unused and undeployed at the border because they have not been funded	. 18
There is a clear link between the presence of drug cartels and an increase in drug trafficking in border states	. 19
Con Evidence	.20
Crossing the border is incredibly dangerous and the difficult terrain has cost hundreds of lives	. 20
Policies that make it harder to cross the border don't actually stop migrants from crossing the border	
Hard-line immigration policies have increased, and migration has decreased, but migration deaths are higher than ever	.22
CBP has a long history of racism, and current CBP agents uphold this racism	. 23
The algorithms in surveillance technologies are often wrong and quick to make harmful generalizations	. 24
The surveillance technologies at the border contribute to a growing "spy network"	. 25
There is precedence for border security/surveillance technology expanding into other areas of Americar life	



This analysis serves as an introduction to the topic and offers guidance for areas students can explore further with independent research. It does not attempt to provide limitations on debater's interpretations of the topic.

Topic Evolution

The September/October topic always evolves in an interesting way because of its position as the first topic of the season. This means that by the time it comes into play in September, the topic has developed throughout the summer, especially as camps worked on it, though it never spirals too far out of control because it needs to remain accessible to new debaters. When combined with the political relevance of this particular topic, it means that the next couple of months are sure to be rife with exciting debates.

On the negation, most teams are going down the path of deterrence policies failing and pushing migrants to take more dangerous routes. These arguments function well together and craft a narrative that affirming increases the risk of harm and death for migrants. There is a great deal of evidence that argues that hardline immigration policies generally, and increasing border surveillance specifically, increase migrant deaths. Much of this is specific to the US-Mexico border, but there is evidence of this from across the world, proving that it is a clear link to the technologies and the policies. This is, therefore, the easiest and most effective neg strategy, as well as probably the most morally commendable argument in the round. Any policy that is proven to increase deaths is not a policy that our government should enact.

On the aff, however, things get a little more complex. Trying to avoid some of the rhetoric typical of border debates, many teams have gotten more creative on the aff, while still managing to discuss important and relevant dimensions of the topic. Trafficking has become a major area for aff teams to research, whether it's the trafficking of humans, drugs, or weapons. The drug and weapons arguments function effectively together; Americans take weapons into Mexico for the cartels who then send them back across the border with drugs. Without any kind of change or restriction on this exchange, the government is standing by and allowing cartels to grow exponentially stronger, which creates even more of a problem for them overall.

There are plenty of different areas to explore with this topic, and as we enter the competitive season and introduce more people to this activity, we're likely to see argumentation grow even more. Best of luck to everyone!



Further Reading and Classroom Resources

General and FYI

Alfonsi, Sharyn. "Chinese Migrants Are the Fastest Growing Group Crossing from Mexico into U.S. At Southern Border." CBC News. 5 Feb. 2024.

<u>www.cbsnews.com/news/chinese-migrants-fastest-growing-group-us-mexico-border-</u>60-minutes-transcript/.

American Immigration Council. "A Guide to Title 42 Expulsions at the Border." American Immigration Council. 29 Mar. 2021.

www.americanimmigrationcouncil.org/research/guide-title-42-expulsions-border.

Ataiants, Janna, et al. "Unaccompanied Children at the United States Border, a Human Rights Crisis That Can Be Addressed with Policy Change." Journal of Immigrant and Minority Health, vol. 20, no. 4, Springer Science+Business Media, Apr. 2017, pp. 1000–10, https://doi.org/10.1007/s10903-017-0577-5.

Blazina, Carrie. "Migrant Encounters at the U.S.-Mexico Border Hit a Record High at the End of 2023." Pew Research Center. 15 Feb. 2024. www.pewresearch.org/short-reads/2024/02/15/migrant-encounters-at-the-us-mexico-border-hit-a-record-high-at-the-end-of-2023/.

Gambino, Lauren, et al. "The Unprecedented Situation at the US-Mexico Border – Visualized." The Guardian. 7 Feb. 2024. www.theguardian.com/us-news/2024/feb/07/mexico-border-explained-chart-immigration.

Garsd, Jasmine. "Immigrants Are Less Likely to Commit Crimes than U.S.-Born Americans, Studies Find." NPR. 8 Mar. 2024.

www.npr.org/2024/03/08/1237103158/immigrants-are-less-likely-to-commit-crimes-than-us-born-americans-studies-find.

Hesson, Ted. "Biden Officials Weigh Tougher Asylum Ban at Mexico Border." Reuters. 4 Sept. 2024. www.reuters.com/world/us/biden-officials-weigh-tougher-asylum-ban-mexico-border-2024-09-04/.

Hesson, Ted, et al. "Republicans Call Harris a Failed Border Czar. The Facts Tell a Different Story." Reuters. 30 July 2024. www.reuters.com/world/us/republicans-call-harris-failed-border-czar-truth-is-more-complicated-2024-07-30/.



IEEE. "High-Tech Border Security: Current and Emerging Trends." IEEE Public Safety Technology Initiative. 2021. <u>publicsafety.ieee.org/topics/high-tech-border-security-current-and-emerging-trends</u>.

Jingnan, Huo. "What Drove Last Year's Surge in Chinese Migrants at the Southern Border?" NPR. 9 Aug. 2024. www.npr.org/2024/08/07/nx-s1-5032835/chinese-migrants-southern-border.

Martínez-Beltrán, Sergio. "Biden's New Executive Order Denies Asylum Claims to Most Migrants Crossing the Border Unlawfully." NPR. 4 Jun. 2024.

www.npr.org/2024/06/04/nx-s1-4991917/biden-executive-order-asylum-migration-border.

Martínez-Beltrán, Sergio. "Illegal Crossings Hit Biden-Era Low as Migrants Wait Longer for Entry." NPR. 30 Jul. 2024. www.npr.org/2024/07/30/nx-s1-5051615/border-migrant-crossings-mexico-us-illegal-cbpone.

Muñoz-Pogossian, Betilde and Winkler, Alexandra. "The Persistence of the Venezuelan Migrant and Refugee Crisis." Csis.org, 2023, www.csis.org/analysis/persistence-venezuelan-migrant-and-refugee-crisis.

Noe-Bustamante, Luis. "Latinos' Views on the Migrant Situation at the U.S.-Mexico Border." Pew Research Center. 4 Mar. 2024. www.pewresearch.org/race-and-ethnicity/2024/03/04/latinos-views-on-the-migrant-situation-at-the-us-mexico-border/.

Rose, Joel. "A Majority of Americans See an 'Invasion' at the Southern Border, NPR Poll Finds." NPR. 18 Aug. 2022. www.npr.org/2022/08/18/1117953720/a-majority-of-americans-see-an-invasion-at-the-southern-border-npr-poll-finds.

Sherman, Christopher, et al. "Venezuelans Are Increasingly Stuck in Mexico, Explaining Drop in Illegal Crossings to US." AP News. 28 Mar. 2024.

 $\frac{apnews.com/article/immigration-us-mexico-venezuelans-}{09ba20bda36590024e433153800ab86d\#:^:text=More%20than%20500%2C000%20migrants%20have, which%20entitles%20them%20to%20work.}$

U.S. Customs and Border Protection. "Southwest Land Border Encounters." U.S. Customs and Border Protection. Last accessed 10 Aug. 2024. www.cbp.gov/newsroom/stats/southwest-land-border-encounters.

Zamorano, Juan, and Salomon, Gisela. "Migrating Venezuelans Undeterred by US Plan to Resume Deportation Flights." AP News. 6 Oct. 2023. apnews.com/article/venezuela-migrants-us-deportation-flights-9ee42699b14ccef97de74263d2105fd0#.



Pro - General

Camarota, Steven A., and Zeigler, Karen. "Welfare Use by Immigrants and the U.S.-Born." Center for Immigration Studies. 19 Dec. 2023. cis.org/Report/Welfare-Use-Immigrants-and-USBorn.

Department of Homeland Security. "Fact Sheet: DHS Continues to Strengthen Border Security, Reduce Irregular Migration, and Mobilize International Partnerships." U.S. Department of Homeland Security. 4 Jun. 2024. <a href="www.dhs.gov/news/2024/06/04/fact-sheet-dhs-continues-strengthen-border-security-reduce-irregular-migration-and#:~:text=Strengthening%20and%20Expanding%20Enforcement%20of%20Consequences%3A&text=DHS%20has%20also%20bolstered%20the,detect%20narcotics%20and%20ther%20contraband."

Pro - Drug Trafficking

Ballesteros, Aldrin. "Fentanyl Seizures at the Southwest Border: A Breakdown by CBP Areas of Responsibility." Wilson Center. 29 Aug. 2023.

www.wilsoncenter.org/article/fentanyl-seizures-southwest-border-breakdown-cbp-areas-responsibility.

Bier, David J. "Fentanyl Is Smuggled for U.S. Citizens by U.S. Citizens, Not Asylum Seekers." Cato Institute. 14 Sept. 2022. www.cato.org/blog/fentanyl-smuggled-us-citizens-not-asylum-

seekers#:~:text=Fentanyl%20smuggling%20is%20ultimately%20funded,immigrants%20for%20the%20same%20offense.

Bier, David J. "US Citizens Were 80.2 Percent of Crossers with Fentanyl at Ports of Entry from 2019 to 2024." Cato Institute. 8 Aug. 2024. www.cato.org/blog/us-citizens-were-802-crossers-fentanyl-ports-entry-2019-2024.

Bregel, Emily. "Arizona officials urge Congress to fully fund border fentanyl scanners." Arizona Daily Star. 21 Mar. 2024. tucson.com/news/local/border/arizona-elected-officials-border-fentanyl-scanners-stalled-funding-bill/article_7b93e0de-e6ff-11ee-9f64-878f6005107e.html.

Dudley, Steven et al. "Mexico's Role in the Deadly Rise of Fentanyl." Wilson Center. February 2019. www.wilsoncenter.org/publication/mexicos-role-the-deadly-rise-fentanyl.

Governor of California's Office. "California Seizes More than 5.8 Million Fentanyl Pills since January." Governor of California. 28 May 2024.



www.gov.ca.gov/2024/05/28/california-seizes-more-than-5-8-million-fentanyl-pills-since-january/.

Mann, Brian. "Politicians Say They'll Stop Fentanyl Smugglers. Experts Say New Drug War Won't Work." NPR. 21 Feb. 2023. www.npr.org/2023/02/21/1158300583/fentanyl-smuggling-border-mexico-overdose-drug-war.

Penichet-Paul, Christian. "Illicit Fentanyl and Drug Smuggling at the U.S.-Mexico Border: An Overview." National Immigration Forum. 25 Oct. 2023.

<u>immigrationforum.org/article/illicit-fentanyl-and-drug-smuggling-at-the-u-s-mexico-border-an-overview/.</u>

Rose, Joel. "Who Is Sneaking Fentanyl across the Southern Border? Hint: It's Not the Migrants." NPR. 9 Aug. 2023. www.npr.org/2023/08/09/1191638114/fentanyl-smuggling-migrants-mexico-border-drugs.

Strickler, Laura, et al. "Scanners That Spot Smuggled Fentanyl at the Border Sit Unused Because Congress Hasn't Provided the Cash to Install Them." NBC News. 5 Mar. 2024. www.nbcnews.com/politics/immigration/border-fentanyl-scanners-unused-congress-provided-no-money-rcna141432.

U.S. Customs & Border Protection. "CBP: America's Front Line against Fentanyl." U.S. Customs and Border Protection. 24 May 2024. www.cbp.gov/frontline/cbp-america-s-front-line-against-

fentanyl#:~:text=Since%20then%2C%20the%20amount%20has,the%20end%20of%20Se ptember%202023.

Pro - Weapons Smuggling

Barned-Smith, St. John . "A Shootout in Mexico Left 23 Dead and Led ATF Agents to Houston." Houston Chronicle. 13 Aug. 2020.

<u>www.houstonchronicle.com/news/houston-texas/houston/article/mexico-shootout-23-dead-houston-tx-crime-guns-15481531.php.</u>

Cauchi, E. D. "Mexican Drug Cartels Pay Americans to Smuggle Weapons across the Border, Intelligence Documents Show." CBS News. 14 Sept. 2023.

www.cbsnews.com/news/mexican-drug-cartels-american-weapons-smuggled-across-border/.

Everytown for Gun Safety. "Damming the Iron River." Everytown Research & Policy. 21 May 2024. everytownresearch.org/report/damming-the-iron-river/.



Kinosian, Sarah. "A Factory City in Wisconsin Fed Weapons to a Mexican Cartel." Reuters. 9 Dec. 2023. www.reuters.com/investigates/special-report/mexico-usa-guns/.

Linthicum, Kate. "There Is Only One Gun Store in All of Mexico. So Why Is Gun Violence Soaring?" Los Angeles Times. 24 May 2018. www.latimes.com/world/la-fg-mexico-guns-20180524-story.html.

Morland, Sarah. "US Must Stem 'Iron River' of Guns Flowing to Latin America, Activists Say." Reuters. 18 Apr. 2023. www.reuters.com/world/americas/us-must-stem-iron-river-guns-flowing-latin-america-activists-say-2023-04-18/.

Resendiz, Julian. "Seven Charged with Making 'Straw' Purchases of Guns Destined for Mexico." Yahoo News. 7 Sept. 2023. www.yahoo.com/news/seven-charged-making-straw-purchases-053740238.html.

Stephens, Alain. "U.S. Agents Are Seizing More Guns Headed to Mexico." The Trace. 7 Mar. 2024. www.thetrace.org/2024/03/us-mexico-gun-trafficking-border-cbp/.

The Economist. "Mexico's Government Is Suing American Gun Manufacturers." The Economist. 5 Oct. 2023. www.economist.com/the-americas/2023/10/05/mexicos-government-is-suing-american-gun-

<u>response.anonymous&gad_source=1&gclid=CjwKCAjwoJa2BhBPEiwA0l0ImIC26lQF14bQ</u> ACQXu2ikkT0XuYtduleMM2fBLDEj34Mfj zwlAipJhoCLqkQAvD BwE&gclsrc=aw.ds.



Con - General

American Immigration Council. "The Cost of Immigration Enforcement and Border Security." American Immigration Council. 23 Sept. 2013.

www.americanimmigrationcouncil.org/research/the-cost-of-immigration-enforcement-and-border-security.

Garsd, Jasmine. "Migrants Are Showing up at the U.S. Southern Border in Historic Numbers. Here's Why." NPR. 12 Nov. 2023.

www.npr.org/2023/11/12/1212058889/migrants-u-s-southern-border-historic-numbers-why.

Greenfield, Carlyn. "As Governments Build Advanced Surveillance Systems to Push Borders Out, Will Travel and Migration Become Unequal for Some Groups?" Migration Policy. 10 Mar. 2020. www.migrationpolicy.org/article/governments-build-advanced-surveillance-systems.

Con - Migrant Deaths/Danger

Beauregard, Luis Pablo. "US-Mexico Border Records One of Its Deadliest Years Ever." EL PAÍS English. 27 Dec. 2023. english.elpais.com/usa/2023-12-27/us-mexico-border-records-one-of-its-deadliest-years-ever.html.

Del Valle, Gaby. "Surveillance Has a Body Count: CBP Reports 895 Migrant Deaths in 2022." The Verge. 20 Mar. 2024. www.theverge.com/2024/3/20/24106098/cbp-migrant-deaths-border-surveillance.

Government Accountability Office. "Border Security: Border Patrol's Missing Migrant Program." Government Accountability Office. 20 Mar. 2024. www.gao.gov/products/gao-24-107051.

Guardian staff reporter. "Record Half Million People Crossed the Treacherous Darién Gap in 2023." The Guardian. 3 Jan. 2024. www.theguardian.com/us-news/2024/jan/03/record-half-million-people-crossed-darien-gap-2023.

Hellerstein, Erica. "Between the US and Mexico, a Corridor of Surveillance Becomes Lethal." Coda Story. 14 Jul. 2021. www.codastory.com/authoritarian-tech/us-border-surveillance/.

Human Rights Watch. "US: Border Deterrence Leads to Deaths, Disappearances." Human Rights Watch. 26 Jun. 2024. www.hrw.org/news/2024/06/26/us-border-deterrence-leads-deaths-disappearances.



Isacson, Adam. "Fewer Migrants, Greater Danger: The Impact of 2024'S Crackdowns." WOLA. 30 Aug. 2024, www.wola.org/analysis/fewer-migrants-greater-effect-2024s-migration-crackdowns/.

McCandless Farmer, Brit. "The San Judas Break: Where Migrants Pour into America." CBS News. 5 Feb. 2024. www.cbsnews.com/news/the-san-judas-break-where-migrants-pour-into-america-60-minutes/.

Missing Migrants Project. "The Americas." Missing Migrants Project. Last accessed 10 Aug. 2024. missingmigrants.iom.int/region/americas.

Montoya-Galvez, Camilo. "At Least 853 Migrants Died Crossing the U.S.-Mexico Border in Past 12 Months — a Record High." CBS News. 28 Oct. 2022.

www.cbsnews.com/news/migrant-deaths-crossing-us-mexico-border-2022-record-

Ortega, Bob. "Border Patrol Failed to Count Hundreds of Migrant Deaths on US Soil." CNN. 14 May 2018. www.cnn.com/2018/05/14/us/border-patrol-migrant-death-count-invs/index.html.

Yeung, Peter. "The Other Death Valley: Hundreds of Migrants Are Dying in Remote Texas Deserts." The Guardian. 19 Aug. 2022. www.theguardian.com/us-news/2022/aug/19/migrant-deaths-border-crossing-texas-mexico-extreme-heat.

Con - Deterrence Ineffective

high/.

Demsas, Jerusalem. "How Deterrence Policies Create Border Chaos." The Atlantic. 21 June 2023. www.theatlantic.com/ideas/archive/2023/06/deterrence-immigration-us-border-policy/674457/.

Jones, Reece. "Borders and Walls: Do Barriers Deter Unauthorized Migration?" Migration Policy Institute. 4 Oct. 2016. www.migrationpolicy.org/article/borders-and-walls-do-barriers-deter-unauthorized-migration.

Rodriguez Calderón, Andrew and Dias, Isabela. "Strict Border Enforcement Policies Put Migrants in Harm's Way. Title 42 Is No Exception." The Marshall Project. 26 May 2021. www.themarshallproject.org/2021/05/26/strict-border-enforcement-policies-put-migrants-in-harm-s-way-title-42-is-no-exception.

Con - Surveillance Creep

Amnesty International. "Global: New Technology and AI Used at Borders Increases Inequalities and Undermines Human Rights of Migrants." Amnesty International. 21 May



2024. <u>www.amnesty.org/en/latest/news/2024/05/global-new-technology-and-ai-used-at-borders-increases-inequalities-and-undermines-human-rights-of-migrants/.</u>

EFF. "EFF Zine on Surveillance Tech at the Southern Border Shines Light on Ever-Growing Spy Network." Electronic Frontier Foundation. 6 May 2024.

www.eff.org/press/releases/eff-zine-surveillance-tech-southern-border-shines-light-ever-growing-spy-network.

EPIC. "Traveler Screening and Border Surveillance." Electronic Privacy Information Center. Last accessed 8 Sep 2024. epic.org/issues/surveillance-oversight/border-surveillance/.

Fry, Wendy. "'A Partner That Never Sleeps': Surveillance Towers Extend Border Patrol's California Reach." CalMatters. 30 Jan. 2024. calmatters.org/california-divide/2024/01/border-patrol-california/.

Guerrero, Jean. "Opinion: U.S. Border Surveillance Should Scare Residents." GovTech. 10 Feb. 2022. www.govtech.com/opinion/opinion-u-s-border-surveillance-should-scare-residents.

Janisse, Miranda. "Surveillance Creep and Its Sinister Impacts." Dunham Connect. 24 Jan. 2023. dunhamconnect.com/blog/the-danger-of-surveillance-creep#:~:text=%E2%80%9CSurveillance%20creep%E2%80%9D%20is%20the%20idea,collecting%20much%20more%20personal%20information.

Maass, Dave. "Coalition to Calexico: Think Twice about Reapproving Border Surveillance Tower next to a Public Park." Electronic Frontier Foundation. 14 May 2024. www.eff.org/deeplinks/2024/05/coalition-calexico-think-twice-about-reapproving-border-surveillance-tower-next.

Tyler, Hannah. "The Increasing Use of Artificial Intelligence in Border Zones Prompts Privacy Questions." Migration Policy Institute. 2 Feb. 2022. www.migrationpolicy.org/article/artificial-intelligence-border-zones-privacy.

Con - CBP Issues

Devereaux, Ryan. "The Border Patrol Calls Itself a Humanitarian Organization. A New Report Says That's a Lie." The Intercept. 3 Feb. 2021.

theintercept.com/2021/02/03/border-patrol-migrants-humanitarian/.

Huddleston, Kate. "Addressing Racialized Violence against Migrants Requires a Complete Overhaul of Customs and Border Protection." American Civil Liberties Union.



24 Sept. 2021. www.aclu.org/news/immigrants-rights/addressing-racialized-violence-against-migrants-requires-a-complete-overhaul-of-customs-and-border-protection.

Rego, Max, and Sottile, Zoe. "US Border Patrol Agent Arrested and Accused of Forcing Women to Expose Themselves in Virtual Interviews." CNN. 24 Aug. 2024. www.cnn.com/2024/08/24/us/border-patrol-agent-charged-shane-millan/index.html.

Rohrlich, Justin. "US Border Officers Die by Suicide 30% More Often than Other Cops." Quartz. 31 Oct. 2019. <u>qz.com/1738901/us-border-officers-die-by-suicide-30-percent-more-often-than-other-cops</u>.



Pro Evidence

DHS has been expanding the types of surveillance technology they use at the border

Department of Homeland Security. "Fact Sheet: DHS Continues to Strengthen Border Security, Reduce Irregular Migration, and Mobilize International Partnerships." U.S. Department of Homeland Security. 4 Jun. 2024. www.dhs.gov/news/2024/06/04/fact-sheet-dhs-continues-strengthen-border-security-reduce-irregular-migration-

and#:~:text=Strengthening%20and%20Expanding%20Enforcement%20of%20Consequences%3A&text=D HS%20has%20also%20bolstered%20the,detect%20narcotics%20and%20other%20contraband

Strengthening and Expanding Enforcement of Consequences: **DHS has taken unprecedented** actions to strengthen enforcement of our immigration laws and deter irregular migration, including referring record numbers of individuals into expedited removal. Over the past year, we have removed or returned more than three quarters of a million people, more than in any fiscal year since 2010: Throughout the last three years, this Administration has carried out a whole-of-government response to irregular migration, increasing the number of Agents and Officers on the southwest border to over 24,000, adding thousands of additional support personnel, surging thousands of law enforcement and other personnel from across the Department, and securing the first significant increase of Border Patrol agents in more than a decade. DHS has also bolstered the technology along the border, including the deployment of autonomous surveillance towers and continuing to deploy new non-intrusive inspections systems at ports of entry (POEs) to better detect narcotics and other contraband. DHS has made significant infrastructure and process improvements aimed at enhancing our ability to deploy consequences for unlawful entries at the border. These efforts include increasing border holding capacity by over a third since early 2021 through the construction of new facilities, modernizing processing systems, contracting support for transportation between sectors, and establishing processes to ensure that removals are accomplished fairly, efficiently, and quickly. As a result, we removed more people in the last year—more than 740,000—than any previous year since 2010.



Weapons trafficked from the US into Mexico worsen conditions on both sides of the border and increase overdose deaths

Stephens, Alain. "U.S. Agents Are Seizing More Guns Headed to Mexico." The Trace. 7 Mar. 2024. www.thetrace.org/2024/03/us-mexico-gun-trafficking-border-cbp/.

United States border agents are cracking down on gun trafficking across the southern border as part of a broader bilateral effort against Mexican drug cartels. U.S. Customs and Border Protection reported intercepting 1,171 guns before they crossed into Mexico in 2023. That is nearly seven times as many as in 2019, when CBP intercepted 173 guns. While experts say the increase is promising, the number of weapons being captured by CBP still represents only a sliver of the hundreds of thousands of guns that researchers estimate are trafficked from the United States to Mexico every year. "It's a symbolic gesture that the U.S. is taking this concern seriously," David Shirk, a political science professor at the University of San Diego who specializes in U.S.-Mexico relations, told The Trace. "I say 'symbolic' because a thousand guns isn't that many guns. It's a fragment of the guns that are making their way into Mexico." These guns have bolstered the cartels that U.S. authorities blame for a surge in American overdose deaths. In 2023, the United States suffered more than 112,000 fatal drug overdoses for the first time ever. The majority of those deaths involved fentanyl and other synthetic opioids, much of which is synthesized in Mexico before being smuggled over the border. A 2023 audit conducted by the U.S. Government Accountability Office on American security aid to Mexico concluded that "U.S. firearms trafficked into Mexico, along with the U.S.'s high demand for illegal drugs, contribute to security and drug crises on both sides of the border."



One Wisconsin town has provided thousands of dollars' worth of weapons to Mexico

Kinosian, Sarah. "A Factory City in Wisconsin Fed Weapons to a Mexican Cartel." Reuters. 9 Dec. 2023. www.reuters.com/investigates/special-report/mexico-usa-guns/.

Racine, Wisconsin is best known for factories, farming, and an extravagant televised prom celebration. But in 2018, Racine's suburban sprawl on the edge of Lake Michigan became a source of high caliber weapons for one of Mexico's top fentanyl trafficking gangs, the Cartel Jalisco Nueva Generacion (CJNG), U.S. federal arms-trafficking investigators allege. The cartel exploited permissive federal and state-level gun control rules to buy some of the most powerful weapons available to American civilians, according to two former agents with the U.S. Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) and two other sources, all with knowledge of the investigation. Members of a local family, working with a cousin in Mexico, enlisted friends and relatives who bought guns on their behalf in Racine and transported them to California and south across the border, according to an indictment from Wisconsin's Eastern District Court unsealed in February. Their clients included a hit squad reporting to CJNG leader Nemesio Oseguera, better known as "El Mencho," according to Chris Demlein, one of the former ATF agents. The Racine case unlocked "the most prolific CJNG firearms trafficking network ever discovered," said Demlein, who until 2021 served as a senior special agent with ATF and oversaw a multi-agency arms trafficking project that coordinated dozens of investigations. The traffickers in Racine and two connected cells in other locations bought more than \$600,000 of high-end military-style firearms in under a year, internal ATF documents reviewed by Reuters allege. It seemed like an unprecedented shopping spree, said Tim Sloan, the other former ATF investigator. Sloan was the first to trace a CJNG gun to Racine.



Cartels employ Americans to help them get guns across the border and into Mexico

Cauchi, E. D. "Mexican Drug Cartels Pay Americans to Smuggle Weapons across the Border, Intelligence Documents Show." CBS News. 14 Sept. 2023. www.cbsnews.com/news/mexican-drug-cartels-american-weapons-smuggled-across-border/.

Mexican drug cartels have been smuggling a vast arsenal of even military-grade weapons out of the U.S. with the help of American citizens, a CBS Reports investigation has found. Exclusively-obtained U.S. intelligence documents and interviews with half a dozen current and former officials reveal that the American government has known this for years but, sources said, it's done little to stop these weapons trafficking networks inside the United States, which move up to a million firearms across the border annually, including belt-fed miniguns and grenade launchers. Dozens of cartel gunrunning networks, operating like terrorist cells, pay Americans to buy weapons from gun stores and online dealers all across the country, as far north as Wisconsin and even Alaska, according to U.S. intelligence sources. The firearms are then shipped across the southwest border through a chain of brokers and couriers. When CBS News pressed the Justice Department about its findings, a senior official confirmed that "We absolutely recognize the problem here that ... the lion's share of firearms trafficked to Mexican cartels are coming from the United States." For more than 50 years, the U.S. government has waged an unsuccessful war on drug traffickers, who are now fueling a deadly fentanyl epidemic. The free flow of American guns across the southern border empowers the cartels to protect their drug operations and outgun Mexican authorities, U.S. officials said. "We have allowed the cartels to amass an army," said Chris Demlein, who served as a senior special agent with the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives — the ATF — until 2021.



Migrant households are more likely to use welfare programs

Camarota, Steven A., and Zeigler, Karen. "Welfare Use by Immigrants and the U.S.-Born." Center for Immigration Studies. 19 Dec. 2023. cis.org/Report/Welfare-Use-Immigrants-and-USBorn.

This report is based on newly released data from the 2022 Survey of Income and Program Participation (SIPP). Analysis of this data shows both immigrants and the U.S.-born make extensive use of means-tested anti-poverty programs, with immigrant households significantly more likely to receive benefits. This is primarily because the American welfare system is designed in large part to help low-income families with children, which describes a large share of immigrants. The ability of immigrants, including illegal immigrants, to receive welfare benefits on behalf of U.S.-born citizen children is a key reason why restrictions on welfare use for new legal immigrants, and illegal immigrants, are relatively ineffective. Among the findings: The 2022 SIPP indicates that **54 percent of households headed by** <u>immigrants</u> — naturalized citizens, legal residents, and illegal immigrants — used one or more major welfare program. This compares to 39 percent for U.S.-born households. The rate is 59 percent for non-citizen households (e.g. green card holders and illegal immigrants). Compared to households headed by the U.S.-born, immigrant-headed households have especially high use of food programs (36 percent vs. 25 percent for the U.S.-born), Medicaid (37 percent vs. 25 percent for the U.S.-born), and the Earned Income Tax Credit (16 percent vs. 12 percent for the U.S.-born). Our best estimate is that **59 percent of households headed by** illegal immigrants, also called the undocumented, use at least one major program. We have no evidence this is due to fraud. Among legal immigrants we estimate the rate is 52 percent.



Fentanyl scanners sit unused and undeployed at the border because they have not been funded

Strickler, Laura, et al. "Scanners That Spot Smuggled Fentanyl at the Border Sit Unused Because Congress Hasn't Provided the Cash to Install Them." NBC News. 5 Mar. 2024. www.nbcnews.com/politics/immigration/border-fentanyl-scanners-unused-congress-provided-no-money-rcna141432.

Customs and Border Protection has spent millions on the most up-to-date high-tech scanners to spot fentanyl crossing the southern U.S. border, but many scanners are sitting in warehouses unused because Congress hasn't appropriated funds to install them, acting CBP Commissioner Troy Miller told NBC News. Miller gave NBC News a tour of a port of entry in Nogales, Arizona, where half of all fentanyl seized at the border is stopped on its way into the U.S. from Mexico. Officers in Nogales have found fentanyl hidden inside crates of Coca-Cola, where bottles are painted black to look like liquid, sawed in half and filled with fentanyl pills; they've confiscated millions in fentanyl pills stuffed inside the water barrel of a commercial bus' bathroom; they've even found fentanyl in cars carrying young children in the back in car seats. More than 95% of fentanyl seized at the border, Miller said, is actually brought into the U.S. in personal vehicles. The new technology, known as Non-Intrusive Inspection, or NII, lets CBP Xray a percentage of cars and trucks as they pass through the massive U-shaped screeners, which look something like car washes. Drivers don't have to get out of their vehicles to be screened, which means traffic can keep flowing through border checkpoints with fewer interruptions. But some of the equipment that has been purchased hasn't yet been put into use, because Congress hasn't allocated the funding needed to install it. The money to install the screeners was in the supplemental funding request Republicans blocked. "We do have technology that's in the warehouse that has been tested. But we need approximately \$300 million [to] actually put the technology in the ground," Miller said. "It's extremely frustrating."



There is a clear link between the presence of drug cartels and an increase in drug trafficking in border states

Ballesteros, Aldrin. "Fentanyl Seizures at the Southwest Border: A Breakdown by CBP Areas of Responsibility." Wilson Center. 29 Aug. 2023. www.wilsoncenter.org/article/fentanyl-seizures-southwest-border-breakdown-cbp-areas-responsibility.

Fentanyl seizures at the Mexico – U.S. border increased 164% from 2020 to 2022. Seizures in 2023 of 21,846 pounds (about 9909 kg) (FYTD) have already surpassed last year's 14,104 pounds (about 6397 kg). Most fentanyl seizures occur in the states of California and Arizona and both states have seen an increase in fentanyl seizures over the period of 2020 - 2023 (FYTD). Seizures in Texas and New Mexico, on the other hand, are a fraction of the previously mentioned states and seizures in these states collectively, decreased from 2021 to 2022. The prevalence of fentanyl seizures in California and Arizona is linked directly to the dominance of the Sinaloa Cartel and the Jalisco New Generation Cartel in Baja California and Sonora, the two neighboring Mexican States. New Mexico and Texas, on the other hand, border Mexican states where the previously mentioned cartels are not dominant. Cartels hire both Mexican and U.S. citizens to smuggle the easily concealable drug through ports of entry on foot and by passenger and cargo vehicles. This practice results in close to 90% of illicit fentanyl seizures occurring at official border crossings, according to CBP. The DEA has named the two cartels as the major suppliers of fentanyl in the United States. The increase in fentanyl seizures at the Southwest border is not replicated in seizures of cocaine, heroin, or methamphetamine. Cocaine seizures decreased slightly in 2022 over 2021 while heroin seizures decreased far more dramatically over the past two years from 5,157 pounds (about 2339 kg) in 2020 to 1,498 pounds (about 679 kg) in 2022. Methamphetamine remains the most seized drug with seizures along the southern border in 2021 of 182,561 pounds (about 82808 kg) and 160,305 pounds (about 72713 kg) seized in 2022. Seizures in 2023 (FYTD) suggest that fentanyl may surpass cocaine as the second most seized illicit substance at the Southern border.



Con Evidence

Crossing the border is incredibly dangerous and the difficult terrain has cost hundreds of lives

Del Valle, Gaby. "Surveillance Has a Body Count: CBP Reports 895 Migrant Deaths in 2022." The Verge. 20 Mar. 2024. www.theverge.com/2024/3/20/24106098/cbp-migrant-deaths-border-surveillance.

Customs and Border Protection (CBP) just released updated data on migrant deaths at the US-Mexico border, and the results are staggering. At least 895 people died at the border during the 2022 fiscal year — a 57 percent increase from the previous fiscal year. This grim statistic makes 2022 the deadliest year on record for migrants attempting to come to the US, and it's possible that the figure is an undercount. For years, CBP has blamed the persistent rise in deaths on three factors: the summer heat, the ruggedness of the desert terrain, and the cruelty of smugglers who leave migrants to die there. Climate change has indeed made summers hotter and drier, which means migrants who spend days or weeks trekking through remote stretches of the desert are more likely to become dehydrated and, if out in the sun for long enough, to succumb to exposure. But rising temperatures don't explain why migrants are crossing through such perilous parts of the borderlands in the first place, often dying in the process. The real culprit is the vast surveillance apparatus that funnels migrants — including people seeking asylum — into what CBP itself calls "hostile terrain."



Policies that make it harder to cross the border don't actually stop migrants from crossing the border

Rodriguez Calderón, Andrew and Dias, Isabela. "Strict Border Enforcement Policies Put Migrants in Harm's Way. Title 42 Is No Exception." The Marshall Project. 26 May 2021. www.themarshallproject.org/2021/05/26/strict-border-enforcement-policies-put-migrants-in-harm-s-way-title-42-is-no-exception.

<u>can't deter people running for their lives,"</u> says Budd. "If they can no longer drive through, they will jump over, tunnel in, or backpack it across. It's a matter of life and death." "I think <u>we've overestimated how effective deterrence can be at managing migrant flows given the factors that push migrants in the first place," says Theresa Cardinal Brown, a former DHS official and the Bipartisan Policy Center's managing director of immigration and cross-border policy. The result, she says, is a "race to the bottom to make it so it's worse to migrate across the border than it is to stay where you are."</u>



Hard-line immigration policies have increased, and migration has decreased, but migration deaths are higher than ever

Isacson, Adam. "Fewer Migrants, Greater Danger: The Impact of 2024'S Crackdowns." WOLA. 30 Aug. 2024, www.wola.org/analysis/fewer-migrants-greater-effect-2024s-migration-crackdowns/.

Migration to the U.S.-Mexico border has plummeted in 2024: this summer has seen some of the fewest migrant arrivals in four years. While this might suggest that migration is now "under control," a closer look at the data reveals a stark humanitarian cost as enforcement policies grow more aggressive in the United States, Mexico, and further south. The numbers show that more migrants and asylum seekers are being denied protection, often bottlenecked along the route and preyed upon by criminal groups, while deaths on U.S. soil increase. The numbers contradict the narratives of hard-liners, like the state government of Texas, who insist that harsh crackdowns on protection-seeking migrants are effective. And they offer no evidence that the present migration decline will be long-lasting. Instead, ten years of repeated crackdowns have failed to limit migration for more than a matter of months, and the current push is unlikely to yield a different outcome. There are a few reasons for this: At a time of historically high global migration, the underfunded, overloaded, unreformed U.S. asylum system has become the only choice for many fleeing their countries, as antiquated **U.S. immigration laws leave almost no legal migration pathways.** The causes of high migration levels—government repression, threats from organized crime, generalized criminal violence, poverty, the climate crisis, gender-based violence, discrimination, and failure to integrate migrants elsewhere in the region—remain robust. Factors that facilitate the journey, like corruption and states' abdication of territory to criminal groups that engage in smuggling, have barely changed.



CBP has a long history of racism, and current CBP agents uphold this racism

Huddleston, Kate. "Addressing Racialized Violence against Migrants Requires a Complete Overhaul of Customs and Border Protection." American Civil Liberties Union. 24 Sept. 2021. https://www.aclu.org/news/immigrants-rights/addressing-racialized-violence-against-migrants-requires-a-complete-overhaul-of-customs-and-border-protection.

The latest violent imagery to emerge from Border Patrol's actions at the U.S.-Mexico border warrants not only outrage and immediate action, but also deep reforms to an entrenched culture of abuse at Customs and Border Protection (CBP), the federal law enforcement agency that includes the sub-agency Border Patrol. One video from Del Rio, Texas shows a Border Patrol officer telling a Haitian migrant, "This is why your country's shit, because you use your women for this!" This abhorrent comment is not an aberration: CBP has long had a pervasive culture of cruelty and dehumanization of migrants that includes this kind of — often anti**immigrant and racist** — **verbal abuse.** The Biden administration must ensure CBP personnel treat people with dignity and humanity. Narrow investigations and hollow assurances are not an adequate response to Border Patrol's horrifying treatment and verbal abuse of Haitian migrants in Del Rio, Texas. President Biden must immediately prioritize a systemic overhaul of CBP, including fundamental reforms of its use of force policies, hiring and disciplinary practices, and complaint mechanism. In light of Border Patrol's long-standing failures, President Biden should oppose any move to reward the agency with increased funding. And Congress, for its part, should also be shrinking the agency's budget, not contemplating any increase. Every day, CBP carries out U.S. border policy and interacts with migrants through the filter of an agency culture steeped in cruelty, xenophobia and racism, violent inhumanity, and impunity. On rare occasions, the agency's abusive actions are caught on camera. But images of CBP tear gassing families, surveillance video of a child dying on the floor of a Border Patrol facility, or horsemounted agents menacing migrants captured on camera tell only a small part of the long history of the agency's violent actions, and the lack of accountability with which they have been met.



The algorithms in surveillance technologies are often wrong and quick to make harmful generalizations

Greenfield, Carlyn. "As Governments Build Advanced Surveillance Systems to Push Borders Out, Will Travel and Migration Become Unequal for Some Groups?" Migration Policy. 10 Mar. 2020. www.migrationpolicy.org/article/governments-build-advanced-surveillance-systems.

A person's data are put into databases and then categorized. Data points are used to evidence certain traits, such as a medical record to signify good (or bad) health and a university diploma to signify level of education. Poor financial records, for example, could be taken as evidence of irresponsibility or inability to keep a job. Depending on the amount of data accessible or requested, it could also include social media posts online and travel history. The data double is meant to create the most thorough profile of a traveler or migrant. This profile is processed through algorithms to assign risk levels and predetermine the aims of the traveler or migrant. However, since algorithms are created by people, they carry the biases of the original creator, rendering the process imperfect. The meanings assigned to specific data points, such as the significance of previous visa rejections, is decided by the creators. In addition, as the machine learns from itself, patterns related to categorization become more fixed, further stratifying travelers. For instance, according to U.S. officials, the addition of Nigeria to the list of countries facing heightened travel restrictions in January 2020 was said to be due to a heightened risk environment in Nigeria and the number of Nigerian visa overstays. The U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS) explicitly noted the use of an assessment model to rank countries' performance against their criteria on information sharing, identity-management systems, and public-safety risks. It is not publicly known whether this assessment model includes machine learning or algorithms, but it seems likely that they would be in use. In such a scenario, if several Nigerians committed a terrorist act in the United States, it likely would raise barriers for Nigerian would-be immigrants as the machine would input a higher level of risk for Nigerians. Moreover, others with similar profiles to the terrorists, such as men of a similar age, from a similar area, or with a similar background could also find themselves moved into higher-risk categories.



The surveillance technologies at the border contribute to a growing "spy network"

EFF. "EFF Zine on Surveillance Tech at the Southern Border Shines Light on Ever-Growing Spy Network." Electronic Frontier Foundation. 6 May 2024. www.eff.org/press/releases/eff-zine-surveillance-tech-southern-border-shines-light-ever-growing-spy-network.

Sensor towers controlled by AI, drones launched from truck-bed catapults, vehicle-tracking devices disguised as traffic cones—all are part of an arsenal of technologies that comprise the expanding U.S surveillance strategy along the U.S.-Mexico border, revealed in a new EFF zine for advocates, journalists, academics, researchers, humanitarian aid workers, and borderland residents. Formally released today and available for download online in English and Spanish, "Surveillance Technology at the U.S.-Mexico Border" is a 36-page comprehensive guide to identifying the growing system of surveillance towers, aerial systems, and roadside camera networks deployed by U.S.-law enforcement agencies along the Southern border, allowing for the real-time tracking of people and vehicles. The devices and towers—some hidden, camouflaged, or moveable—can be found in heavily populated urban areas, small towns, fields, farmland, highways, dirt roads, and deserts in California, Arizona, New Mexico, and **Texas.** The zine grew out of work by EFF's border surveillance team, which involved meetings with immigrant rights groups and journalists, research into government procurement documents, and trips to the border. The team located, studied, and documented spy tech deployed and monitored by the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Customs and Border Protection (CBP), Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), National Guard, and Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA), often working in collaboration with local law enforcement agencies.



There is precedence for border security/surveillance technology expanding into other areas of American life

EPIC. "Traveler Screening and Border Surveillance." Electronic Privacy Information Center. Last accessed 8 Sep 2024. epic.org/issues/surveillance-oversight/border-surveillance/.

Under current 4th Amendment law there are lower privacy protections at the border compared to the interior of the US. Travelers may be searched without warrants and forced into screening databases. The border extends far further than most people realize, Customs and Border Patrol is authorized to operate within 100 miles of the border, giving the agency effective jurisdiction over 2/3 of America's population. Most major surveillance technologies were first tested at the border. The Department of Homeland Security piloted its facial recognitions programs at Southern border crossings before expanding the technology to airports across the US. Drone surveillance has been used along the border for years, and is increasingly present in American cities. Both DHS and the National Guard flew drones over Black Lives Matter protests in 2020. Metal detectors and body scanners were first used in airports but are now a feature of many government buildings and events across the country. When a surveillance technology is used at the border, it's usually only a matter of time before that tech is deployed more widely. Border authorities subject travelers and especially immigrants to surveillance that would be considered unacceptable in any other context. Long wait times, invasive screening, and detention centers all serve to distinguish migrants from citizens, who are subjected to less intense border crossing procedures. Surveillance plays a key role in managing the immigration process. While all travelers are subjected to excessive surveillance, those with the lowest status experience the most invasive procedures.